
20 February 2019

NOTICE OF MEETING

Bursledon Windmill Joint Management Committee
will meet on

Thursday, 28 February 2019
beginning at

10:30 am
in

Room 11/12/13 - Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh, SO50 9YN

TO: Councillors Broadhurst, and Cross 
County Councillors Grajewski, House and Kyrle
Mrs Sutton, Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust
Parish Councillors Mrs Andrewes and Mrs Rich
Matt Blythe, Local Area Manager 
Emma Banks - Hampshire Cultural Trust 

Staff Contact: Mateusz Dobrowolski, Case Management Officer Tel: 
023 8068 8080 Email: 
mateusz.dobrowolski@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

GAETANA WISEMAN
Performance and Governance Manager

_____________________________________________________________________

AGENDA

1. Apologies    

2. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 8) 

To consider the Minutes of the meetings held on 12 July 2018 and 15 November 
2018. 

3. Curator's Report    (Pages 9 - 16)

4. Finance Report    (Pages 17 - 18)

Eastleigh House
 Upper Market Street
Eastleigh SO50 9YN



5. Date and Venue of Next Meeting     

The next meeting will be held on 18 July 2019. Venue to be confirmed. 



BURSLEDON WINDMILL JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Thursday, 12 July 2018  (10:30 am – 11:23 am)

PRESENT:

Representing Eastleigh Borough Council – Councillor Broadhurst

Representing Hampshire County Council – Councillors Grajewski and Kyrle

Representing Bursledon Parish Council – Councillor Andrewes 

Mrs Sutton - Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust

   Hampshire Cultural Trust – Deborah Neubauer and Cerian Gale

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Malcolm Cross, 
Councillor Keith House and Matthew Blythe

21. ELECTION OF CHAIR FOR 2018/2019

The Chairmanship of the Joint Management Committee alternates annually 
between the two authorities. For the year 2018/19 the Chairman should be 
appointed from the County Council members of the Committee.

RESOLVED –

That Councillor Kyrle be appointed Chair of the Joint Management 
Committee for the 2018/19 municipal year.

22. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR FOR 2018/2019

The Vice-Chairmanship alternates annually between the two authorities. For 
the year 2018/19 the Vice-Chairman should be appointed from the Borough 
Council members of the Committee.

RESOLVED – 
 
That Councillor Broadhurst be appointed Vice-Chair of the Joint 
Management Committee for the 2017/18 municipal year.

23. MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 13 February 2018 were agreed as a 
correct record.

1

Agenda Item 2



24. CURATOR'S REPORT

Cerian Gale , the Community Manager representing the Hampshire Cultural 
Trust, presented a report on activities at or relating to Bursledon Windmill 
covering the period from February  to June 2018.
The site remained closed during February and it reopened in March. The re-
opening was slightly delayed due to snowfall. 
Bursledon Windmill hosted the following events: “Spring into Science” in 
March, “Easter Trail” and “Creepy Crawly Creatures” in April. 
Repairs to the mill were completed in time for the National Mills Weekend on 
the 12th and 13th May. Some repairs to the mill’s sails were needed and 
they would be underway once the repair plan was ready.
June saw the Father’s Day celebrated at the “Lazy Summers Day” event. 
The installation of the first brass plaques alongside the running trail.
As a result of the sign off of the mill as operational, the volunteer training 
programme was able to re-start in June and first training session took place 
at the end of the month. Volunteers might be ready in around three to four 
months. By spring next year , the mill may be able to produce its own flour.
Much was being done to recruit new volunteers. 
Future events to take place this year included: “The Great Outdoors”, 
“Windmill Wednesday” events aimed at children during school holidays, 
“Bursledon Bake Off” with pizza baking and finally “Harvest Weekend”.
Visitor numbers so far were up on previous year.
The museum would retain its accreditation status. Hampshire Cultural Trust 
was going through a restructure and each venue was being assessed with 
special focus on collections and conservation needs.
There were three visits from school groups so far this year which was an 
improvement on last year. There were out of hours visits organised by local 
Cubs , Scouts and also by Winchester Archaeology Society.
Hampshire Cultural Trust was providing support through group visits, 
engagement programmes and potential volunteering opportunities to The 
Horizon 20:20 programme which provided regular arts activity for 20 at-risk 
young people at The Bridge Education Centre in Eastleigh . HCT were also 
working in partnership with Hampshire CAMHS (Child and Adolescent 
Mental Health Services) which involved cultural engagement opportunities 
for young people experiencing mental health issues. In Eastleigh CAMHS 
and HCT  were taking part in “The Ice Project” . The celebration event for 
the project took place at The Point in Eastleigh on 27 March with the 
exhibition of the artwork continuing until August 2018.  The second year of 
the ICE Project would start in September 2018. 
Two editions of “Whats On for Families” were featuring Bursledon Windmill 
and were circulated to a wide group of recipents. 
The HCT monthly e-newsletter featuring exhibitions and events from 
Bursledon, had been sent to sign ups on the HCT database. Subscribers 
now numbered over 6300.
HCT Facebook now had over 3550 “likes” and twitter nearly 5390 followers. 
Events at Bursledon were promoted on both social media sites on an 
ongoing basis.  
Work was progressing on the Bursledon venue leaflet which would replace 
the current What’s On guide.

2



25. FINANCIAL REPORT

Consideration was given to the Financial Report presented by Deborah 
Neubauer from Hampshire Cultural Trust, which provided an overview of the 
Windmill’s performance during the 2017/18 financial year and an update 
against the 2018/19 budget. Budget for 2018/19 was reduced to 40K , 
however the restructured Hampshire Cultural Trust was on course to deliver 
all the support which was needed. 

26. DATE AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING

It was agreed that the next meeting would take place at Eastleigh House in 
room 40 (Fourth floor) on 15.11.2018 at 10:30 am.

M6253

3



This page is intentionally left blank



BURSLEDON WINDMILL JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Thursday, 15 November 2018  (10:30 am – 11:30 am)

PRESENT:

  Representing Eastleigh Borough Council – Councillor Broadhurst
  Representing Hampshire County Council – Councillor Kyrle
  Mrs Sutton - Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust
  Hampshire Cultural Trust – Cerian Gale
  Matt Blythe – Local Area Manager 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Malcolm Cross, 
Councillor Judith Grajewski, Councillor Keith House, Councillor Diane 
Andrewes and Councillor Jane Rich

27. MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 12 July 2018 were agreed as a
correct record.

28. COMMUNITY MANAGER'S REPORT

Cerian Gale , the Community Manager representing the Hampshire Cultural
Trust, presented a report on activities at or relating to Bursledon Windmill
covering the period from July to September 2018.

The summer programme started with the Great Outdoors weekend full of 
outdoor family activities which took place in July.
August saw the return of the ever successful Bursledon Bake Off which 
involved pizza baking and a mini tour of the windmill aimed at children which 
proved incredibly popular.
The main focus for September was the Harvest Weekend which was the 
part of the Heritage Open Days programme.
Bursledon Windmill partnered with Bursledon Brickworks, Southampton 
Heritage Buses (who ran free bus journeys between the sites) and the 
Friends of Bursledon Railway to provide a joint event.
The Mill training continued through the summer and the first volunteer had 
now qualified as mill apprentice. Volunteer training and recruitment was 
ongoing. 
With the mill now repaired, volunteers were able to put the mill into 
operation in September. 
Overall visitor numbers during the summer period were very good. Numbers 
in July were slightly lower due to the hot weather.
Ongoing repairs and maintenance works for the next 12 months were 
agreed at the meeting of the curator – Cerian Gale and the conservator – 
Nigel Spender.
Bursledon Windmill was now once more fully accredited by the Arts Council 
England.

5



Hampshire Cultural Trust (HCT) continued its involvement in community 
engagement programmes, namely the Horizon 20:20 – a four year arts 
intervention programme for children excluded from mainstream education 
and The Ice Project – a partnership between Hampshire Cultural Trust and 
Hampshire Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service.

There were three out of hours bookings, all of them in July. The site had 
been visited by the Winchester Archaeology and Research Group, The 
Itchen Blackfoot Beavers and Gosport U3A. 

Hampshire Cultural Trust continued with marketing and communications 
with the new edition of “What’s On for Families”.15,000 copies were printed 
and circulated via the distributors, Culture Calling, to libraries, museums, 
accommodation providers, educational establishments, attractions, arts 
centres, theatres, etc.
HCT continued with the online marketing of the mill site through the e-
newsletter and social media.

Bursledon Windmill was now taking part in the Visitor Survey project which 
involved taking questionnaires from a cross section of visitors to provide 
insights into its visitors. This data could be used to improve marketing and 
the service that Bursledon Windmill provided.

Members asked the Community Manager whether the site had adequate 
volunteer numbers. The curator told members that additional volunteers 
from other sites run by HCT were brought on site when they were needed.
The Chair asked that thanks be passed to all the volunteers who helped with 
running of the site.

Members queried whether the site was being used as a wedding venue. 
Cerian Gale replied that it had not been used for this purpose but it would be 
possible in the future, provided there was some wedding specific 
advertising. The Committee also asked that the Windmill is included in any 
wedding venue promotional information that may be used by Hampshire 
County Council (HCC) at wedding fares etc.
They also asked that the Committee get to see the forward plan for 
maintenance and future projects with expected costs and timescales etc.

29. FINANCE REPORT

Consideration was given to the Financial Report presented by Cerian Gale
from HCT, which provided an overview of the
Windmill’s performance over the current financial year.
There was currently a small underspend but there was some site 
maintenance planned for the second half of the financial year.

Members wanted to know how future income on site could be maximised.
In reply the Community Manager told members that the new range of mill 

6



themed, site specific merchandise was now available on site in addition to 
the ever more successful café.

30. DATE AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING

It was agreed that the next meeting would take place at Eastleigh House in
Rooms 11/12 (First floor) on 14.02.2018 at 10:30 am.

M6272

7



This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: BURSLEDON WINDMILL
JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 28th Feb 2019
Title of Report: COMMUNITY MANAGER’S REPORT
Author: Cerian Gale 

Purpose:

1 Providing a Welcoming and Well Maintained Site

1.1 Windmill Service Delivery

After a quiet start to Oct on the first two weekends due to other big events going on 
in the local area then the visitor numbers picked up significantly towards the end of 
the month as we put on our half term Halloween events. The first one was Spooky 
Mill which grew in size again this year with 200 visitors during the 3 hours of the 
event. Due to the popularity of previous events we made the storytelling element of 
the event pre-bookable which worked extremely well with about two thirds of the 
slots pre-booked in advance and we filled the remainder of the slots with walk-ups 
on the night. As well as an opportunity to enjoy spooky stories in the Mill with our 
resident gypsy the families could take part in a range of craft, trails and activities in 
the barn which had been decorated for the occasion making use of taxidermy 
animals and skulls from the HCT collections. 

Report on activities at or relating to Bursledon Windmill
Covering period Oct 2018 – Jan 2019

9

Agenda Item 3



We kept all the decorations up for our weekend event the weekend after to which 
coincided with the end of half term and was in time for Halloween itself – our 
Halloween Make and Take. This event was also very popular with nearly 100 
visitors on site over the weekend, and nearly 40 of those choose to tour the windmill 
as well. 

In Nov visitor numbers on standard weekends did drop a little bit as would be 
expected for an outdoor site as the weather gets more wintery. However, we still 
comfortably beat budget this month which was driven by the weekend event for Nov 
– Dragons and Fairies. We had 168 visitors on site over the weekend and a huge 
89 chose to tour the windmill as well as take part in the trails and activities run by 
the fantastic volunteers. 

10



Our final event for 2018 was our Christmas Fair and Santa’s grotto on the 1st Dec. 
Once again Santa (our volunteer Stephen) and his elves were in the Mill waiting to 
delight children and bring an extra special bit of Bursledon magic to Christmas. 
Again we set up grotto tickets so they were pre-bookable and had good numbers 
purchased in advance and were able to fill the gaps on the day with walk-ups 
creating a very smoothly run event for visitors. In addition to the grotto we 
welcomed Bursledon CYF to site for the first time who ran their Messy Xmas craft 
session during our event which was a great hit. The Bursledon Parish Church choir 
also attended site that day and performed carols in the barn throughout the 
afternoon. We also had a great range of Christmas gifts available from a range of 
local craft producers.

11



The more autumnal weather has also meant it’s been possible to have the windmill 
operational more regularly in the last few months which has been great. In addition 
volunteer training has continued on alternate Fridays and at the end of Nov we were 
able to assess our Mill volunteer on the first two stages of the training programme 
and were very pleased to sign him off to Apprentice level for both Cap Operation 
and Idling the Mill.

During Dec and Jan when the site is closed the focus turns to maintenance, Gary 
(Miller) attends site every other Sunday to give the mill a thorough clean and 
complete other tasks to ensure the site is in good order to re-open in Spring. This 
year they include pressure-washing the outside of the mill to remove an algae build 
up, completing the installation of our new brass rubbing trail for launch in the new 
year and repairs to the pizza ovens.

Looking forwards the Mill will be re-opening on the 2nd March every weekend until 
Nov. Following the success of the opening pattern for the last two years and the 
steady growth in visitor numbers we have taken the decision to make this a 
permanent change and adapted the site team’s contracts to reflect this. In addition 
Gary will be working every Friday instead of alternate Fridays to ensure we have as 
much opportunity as possible to conduct training with volunteers and get to a 
position as quickly as possible where we can start milling properly again. 

To prepare for re-opening we will be running a start of season training session in 
February for all staff and volunteers, covering plans for the next season, and 
updating training etc. Our first event of the season will be on the 15th and 16th March 
and tie in with British Science week and will explore the engineering behind the mill 
with fun activities for the whole family. 

1.2 Visitor Figures

The excellent trend for visitor numbers has continued over the final months of 
opening for 2018. Visitor numbers were slightly down in Oct compared to last year 
despite a more popular Spooky Mill event as we moved the very popular Dragon 
weekend to Nov this year. However, as a result Nov figures were well above last 
year with numbers to the Dragons and Fairies Weekend above attendance to the 
equivalent Dragon Weekend the previous year. We were very pleased to beat the 

12



full year visitor budget at the beginning of Nov – well ahead of schedule! So every 
visitor from now on is increasing the amount over budget we will be at year end. 
While the site is officially closed to the public in Dec we once again ran our Santa’s 
Grotto event on the first Sat of the month and this year saw a growth in visitors to 
the event recording 207 on site this year. By now we are 30% ahead of budget in 
terms of visitors numbers with March’s totals still to be included which is a fantastic 
achievement. 

Year April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Totals

2011 –
2012

581 645 389 435 408 244 261 258 86 159 227 173 3866

2012 –
2013

385 285 227 251 332 316 433 253 188 62 228 364 3314

2013 –
2014

252 299 278 388 489 784 275 215 95 85 227 332 3719

2014 – 
2015 252 422 318 362 0 121 90 290 72 390 332 503 3152

2015-
2016 298 383 315 282 563 274 431 129 24 109 142 263 3213

2016-
2017 170 124 150 142 309 160 148 59 Closed Closed Closed 142 1404

2017 - 
2018 152 124 171 208 519 377 350 106 169 

Closed Closed Closed 174 2350

2018 - 
2019 208 178 295 179 434 915 323 197 207 

Closed Closed Closed

2  Caring for Collections, Promoting Access, and Providing Specialist Knowledge 
and Advice

2.1 Caring for collections 

The next Mill Inspection with Luke Bonwick is booked for March which will update 
us on the condition of the mill and any further works necessary, allowing us to 
reprioritise repairs following works completed over the winter.

Conservator Nigel Spender has had a significant role in developing plans and 
preparations for further restoration work at Bursledon Windmill.

3  Inspiring Learning and Community Engagement 

3.1 Community Engagement

Horizon 20:20 is a four-year arts intervention programme run by Hampshire Cultural 
Trust, funded by Paul Hamlyn Foundation. Young people from The Bridge 

13



Education Centre have engaged with multiple arts intervention opportunities.  As 
part of the Horizon 20:20 More and Better programme young people from The 
Bridge Education Centre produced work to be exhibited alongside with work from 
Greenwood School and The Key Education Centre. They had a unique opportunity 
create their own response to the TATE ARTIST ROOMS: Agnes Martin. Working for 
5 arts intervention days directly with professional curatorial installation artists, the 
young people mastered different skills and processes to produce artworks that 
explored and expressed their own personal responses to the themes and subjects 
within Agnes Martins work. The work produced was of an outstanding quality and 
was exhibited in the City Space Gallery at Winchester Discovery Centre Friday 7 
July – Tuesday 31 July. It opened as part the prestigious opening event for the 
Agnes Martin exhibition.

During the autumn term 10 students at The Bridge Education Centre in Eastleigh 
(excluded from mainstream education) have taken part in 5 weeks of screen-
printing workshops led by professional artist Sarah Gaiger to create work for the 
Pop Up Theatre artwork for Putting on a Show Exhibition at Westbury Manor 
Museum (Nov 2018). Serena McKinley, (Deputy Head and Art teacher) from the 
Bridge Education Centre is also currently on the Horizon 20:20 Steering Group.

We are in the beginning stages of scoping a youth engagement project across 
Eastleigh. It is intended that this project will link Eastleigh Museum and Bursledon 
Windmill with activity taking place in 2019/20. 

3.2 Out of hour’s bookings

Due to the time of year this report covers we have not had any out of hour’s 
bookings during this period. We do however, already have some booked in for next 
season. 

4    Marketing and Communications

4.1 Print material

A new edition of “What’s On for Families” for the Autumn period (covering the 
period Oct - Nov) and featuring Bursledon Windmill was delivered at the end 
September. 15,000 copies were printed and it was circulated via our distributors, 
Culture Calling, to TICs, libraries, museums, accommodation providers, educational 
establishments, attractions, arts centres, theatres etc. As this features many events 
especially for Halloween/October half term, we also sent this to over 600 schools in 
the region for distribution in ParentMail and Book Bags. (The summer What’s On 
also featured Bursledon and would have been in professional circulation at the 
beginning of the period.)

4.2 Online marketing

The HCT monthly e-newsletter featuring exhibitions and events from Bursledon 
Windmill, has been sent to sign ups on the HCT database. Subscribers now number 
over 15,000. We have promoted features such as the Halloween Make-and-Take 
and Spooky Mill, as well as the forthcoming closure in the newsletter and on the 
website. 

14



4.3 Research

Postcodes are now routinely collected from visitors at Bursledon Windmill on an 
ongoing basis. These are profiled annually using Mosaic software and provide 
ongoing information on which groups of people are using and not using our services 
and how individual visitor profiles compare to the local area. This feeds into the 
service and marketing planning processes. 

Bursledon Windmill is also taking part in the Visitor Survey project, this involves 
taking questionnaires from a cross section of visitors to provide feedback from 
those who visit which we can then use to improve both our marketing and the 
service the Windmill provides.

 
4.4 Social Media

HCT Facebook now has over 3815 “likes” and twitter 5686 followers. Events at 
Bursledon Windmill are promoted on both social media sites on an ongoing basis.  

Those we have promoted during the period include Halloween and half term 
activities (Spooky Mill, make-and-takes) and the Dragons and Fairies event.

Other Projects

The Bursledon Windmill venue leaflet which was delivered at the beginning of the 
period in July has been professionally distributed across the region and is at every 
HCT venue as well as Bursledon itself. Featuring new photography and information 
about the museum and gardens, this 6 sided leaflet replaced the cross-venue 
What’s On guide as a generic and informative piece all about the permanent 
features of the site and forms part of a suite leaflets from every HCT venue.

Cerian Gale/Emma Banks
Feb 2019

15



This page is intentionally left blank



Bursledon Museum JMC  2018-19

January YTD 18-19

Expenditure
Jan YTD 
Actual 18-19

Budget YTD 
Jan 2018-19

Budget 
2018-19

Venue Management -Salaries 13,487 10,496 12,528 Increase in Casual spend
Venue Management -Costs 2,091 4,558 5,391
Venue External funded project expenditure - - 5,500 See outreach programme detail in JMC report/Contribution included in Eastleigh breakdown

Workstream Overheads - incl.Exhibition costs 7,505 8,012 5,842
Public Programmes incl. Collections 1,991 1,720 5,070
Business Development 10,485 12,624 13,330
Total Expenditure 35,559 37,410 47,661
Less Income 6,471 5,196 5,681 Increase due to additional ticketed events put on at the Venue.
Net Expenditure 29,088 32,214 41,980

Allocation based on income levels. Bursledon Actual income is a larger percentage of the 
total workstream income and therefore is taking a larger allocation of the overhead.

17

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Printed minutes Thursday 15-Nov-2018 10.30 Bursledon Windmill Joint Management Committee

	3 Curator's Report
	4 Finance Report

